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I N RE: VILLAGE OF GALENA ZONI NG MEETI NG

PUBLI C HEARI NG
APRI L 27, 2026
6:57 p.m ET

Remot e Proceedi ng

Ellina DeLillo, 2025-RE-885927
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APPEARANCES OF COUNSEL

On behal f of the VI LLAGE OF GALENA:

KEN MOLNAR, ESQ

KENNETH J. MOLNAR ATTORNEY AT LAW
21 M ddl e Street

Gal ena, Onhio 43021

kmol nar @al enaohi 0. gov

Kinnell, Mayor; Gl lian Doucette, Council Menber;

Al so present: Matt Shock, Zoning O ficer; Mchael Fry,
Counci | Menmber; Pete Casucci o, Council Menber; Jeff

Hopper, Council Menber; Jill Love, Council Menmber; Kathy
Krupa, Council Menber; Mark Rufener, Village of Gal ena
Engi neer; Matthew Hollis, Resident/Property Omer;

M chel l e Dearth, Fiscal O ficer of the Village of Gal ena
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| NDEX OF EXAM NATI ON

W TNESS: MATTHEW HOLLI S

EXAM NATI ON

Pr oceedi ngs

| NDEX TO EXHI BI TS

(No exhi bits marked.)
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The public hearing was taken at THE OH O REPORTI NG
COVPANY, 312 WALNUT STREET, SU TE 1600, CI NCI NNATI, OHI O
45202, via videoconference in which all participants
attended renotely, on MONDAY, APRIL 27TH, 2026,
commencing at 6:57 p.m (ET); said public hearing was
taken pursuant to the OH O Rules of Civil Procedure.

The oath in this matter was adm ni stered renotely
pursuant to 7/31/2020 adm ni strative actions, 2020-CH O
3861.
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MR. KINNELL: All right. W're going to now
open a public hearing. Do we have the recorder here?

MR. SHOCK: She is.

MS. DOUCETT: She's -- she's online.

MR. KINNELL: The recorder's online, so you
want to help us get this opened and --

MS. DEARTH: Can you checknmark there?

MR. KINNELL: Who's going to help us get this
open? Tonf? WNMatt?

MR. SHOCK: All right. Next up is a
continuation of a hearing for 42 West Col unbus Street
for M. Hollis. W left the hearing open at the |ast
session in order to resolve sone issues and bring the
concept up for a vote this evening. So | wll step
asi de.

MR. KINNELL: Okay. This is a continuation of
a public hearing fromApril 27th. M. Hollis has been
working diligently with our engineering team It's been
alot of fun, and | -- there's a |lot of updates to bring
council tonight, so I'mgoing to turn it over to M.
Hol | is.

Yeah, | think you m ght have to get sworn in,
M. Hollis.

MR. MOLNAR: M. Hollis, and anyone el se who

W shes to speak at this public hearing, would you pl ease

Veritext Lega Solutions
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stand and rai se your ri

Seeing just M. Hollis and the zoning official, repeat
after ne. |, state my nane -- or state your nane.
MR, HOLLIS: Matthew Hollis.
MR. SHOCK: Matt Shock.
MR, SHOCK: Do swear.
MR, HOLLIS: | affirm
MR. MOLNAR: O affirmthat you will tell the
truth?
MR. HOLLIS: 1'Il tell the truth.
MR. MOLNAR: At this public hearing before the

Gal ena Public Council.
MR. HOLLI S:
Gal ena Counci |

MR. MOLNAR: Thank you.

MR. KINNELL: | just want to make -- for the
record, the hearing started at 6:57 p.m

MR. FRY: The hearing is still open.

MR. KINNELL: That's right. It was still open.
It still --

MR. FRY: It started |ast nonth.

MR. HOLLIS: Al right. WeIlIl, good evening,
everybody. As you nmay recall, my nanme is Matt. Happy
Monday. |It's good to see you again. What we were

di scussing in the | ast

Page 6

ght hand and we'll swear you in?

At this public hearing before the

open hearing is, for those of you
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t hat m ght not have been here, the devel opnent of the
property that I own at the corner of West Col unmbus
Street and Mddle Street.

And ultimtely, what we were trying to do is
there were a nunber engi neering conponents that we
needed to work through, and we felt that we should
probably just kind of let that sit. So we left the
heari ng open, and then | spent a lot of time with the
vill age and devel opnment neetings with Matt and with Tom

as well as with the village engineer, Mark, to come up
with the best win-win situation for everyone invol ved.

And we -- this is a very small site, and so,
squeezed the ball oon as best as we could to make it so
t hat everybody could win. And so, what we have before
you is a revised site plan, and I'm going to go ahead
and wal k over to that side, because | think it'll be a
little easier for me to explain it by the screen, if
t hat's okay.

O would you -- would you rather | stay? Do
you guys have a copy of it that you're |ooking at?

MR. KINNELL: We have a copy --

MR. HOLLIS: Onh, if you' ve got a copy, then
that's fine. All right. So then you can | ook at where
-- so long story short, what we did is -- is before the

| ast hearing, we had not conpleted a full topographical

we
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and boundary survey on the property.
And so, we did get that conpleted a few days
after the -- after the last village council neeting.
Ch, okay, great. Thank you. Al right. And so, and
what we found out is -- is that when we were in all of
t he concept discussions about the angled parking, in
order to add nore spaces, we thought we had nore right
of way or the village thought they had nore right of way
t han what was actually existing.
So when the survey canme back, we had -- | had
initially commtted to giving up two feet out of ny | ot

in order to make that parking possible. But what we

N N N DD DN PP PP
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realized is that it was going to require five feet
instead of two, and the lot is actually really tight and
smal |

And at that tinme the neighbor to ny west,
Col dwat er Consulting, had not commtted to give up any
of their property. They were still alittle bit
concerned and wanted to see exactly where the boundaries
woul d be.

So the surveyor went out. W were able to
st ake everything, and so, then we just all got together
and really worked col | aboratively to try to cone up with
the best win-win possible. And so, | amcommtting to

give up five feet of ny property line in order to nmake
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t he angl ed parki ng possi bl e.
| also worked with Col dwater who is al so

willing to give up five feet fromtheir front property
line in order to make that parking possible. Sone of
the things that we did to kind of ease the burden on the
Col dwat er side was, you'll notice that very |ast space
that we put there is a parallel handi capped parking
space rather than an -- another angled spot which would
have consuned pretty nmuch all of the property that --

t hat she had.

And so, working with her and working with the
village, we determ ned that we can put a parallel
par ki ng space there and that it does neet all of the ADA
requirenents to be a handi capped space.

And given that one of the big sensitivities for
the village was sight lines to the stop sign, we think
this is also a win because that handi capped space won't
get utilized as nuch as nmaybe just a regular parallel
space that would be sitting there.

So you'll note that we are |ooking at a total
of ei ght parking spaces, including the handi capped,
seven that would be angled. The other thing that we
were successful in doing is we were successful in making
all of those spaces functional, full-size spaces.

So they are all nine by, | believe it's 19 or

WWw.veritext.com
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20, spaces rather than going down to nmaybe ei ght-and- a-
half or 18, which is what is on the square, or a little
bit smaller spaces than what we had here. So we were
able to keep it at full-size spaces.
And then, in order to make this possible
t hough, |ike we discussed the last tinme, | need to have
an entrance off of Mddle Street. And there's -- there
was sonme concern about the safety of that entrance. And
so Burgess & Ni ple conducted a traffic study. Burgess &
Niple is a traffic engineering firm and you guys may
have a copy of that, maybe not.

But in that letter, they basically referenced
all of the -- the safety standards that would have to be
put into place to nake that feasible. So the first one
bei ng, you know, we're going to relocate the
intersection fromwhere it's at now to where you
actually stop to |look and see if you can -- and go.

We're going to delete the pedestrian crossing
fromthere to the square. There's currently nowhere on
the square to receive it, and it actually, | think,
makes nore sense in the future for the village to nove
t hat pedestrian crossing to the mddle of Mddle Street,
because then it would line up with the square and the
pedestrian crossing on the other side.

We are going to then add that private access

WWw.veritext.com
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point there. It will be forced to be gated, neaning
that it'll be | ocked down and only accessible when I'm
there. | intend to use a renpte systemso that it's

only open when a vehicle's passing through it.

So | ocked and gated, and then, also, they
reconmended a nmountable curb so that it kind of deters
people frommaking it ook |ike a driveway, and so,
we're going to work through a nountable curb there. And
then, in order to -- to neet ny requirenents, in order

to get ny dealer's license, | have to have a m ninmum | ot
squar e foot age.

And so, we're kind of -- everyone's kind of
doing a little bit of a |and swap, so to speak. So
like, Kristin's giving up sone land. |'mgiving sone
land to Kristen fromthe boundary. She's allow ng ny
building to shift into her land on the north.

The village woul d be vacating sone right of way
to make up for sone of the excess right of way that |
gave up. In the end, the village ends up net positive.
You guys end up with nore square footage than you
started with, and Kristin and | are confortable with
where we | and.

The other good news to this is so then the
approved anended devel opnent plan that is on file,

Kristin and | have to build parking spaces on West

Veritext Lega Solutions
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Street. What we confirmed in the survey is that as
designed in that plan, it's inpossible to build what we
-- or what was designed in 2012, but we are going to go
ahead and commt all of today's cost nunbers to this
proj ect.

So that cones right off of the top so that
that's not getting paid for by the village. And then,
|"mcomritting to -- there was $5,000 in my approved
plan. W went ahead and indexed that for inflation. So

t hat ended up being, like, 7,200-ish dollars that are
goi ng there.
And then, I'"malso conmtting all of the sane

dollars as if this had never happened. So if you guys

just said, hey, we want to leave it all parallel. Matt,
what were you going to spend? WelIl, | was going to have
to put in a new sidewal k. | was going to have to do

site grading.

| was going to have to do all of that anyways.
So all in told, I think we're |ooking at a project of
about, I -- | think we said it was 115, 000-ish, and so
then, I will be putting in 65,000 with nyself and
Kristin and then asking the village if they would Iike
the parking to put in the additional 50,000 to do that.

| just threw a lot at you. What questions do

you have?

Veritext Lega Solutions
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MS. LOVE: | just want to say thank you, Matt,
for bringing us along on this process, you know, kind of
t he good, the bad, and the ugly, right --

MR. HOLLIS: Yeah, right.

MS. LOVE: -- | nmean, what you felt. And so,
it really helps us what journey -- to understand what
journey that you've been on and how chall enging this has
been and how much all of you have been working very hard
on that. So | thank you.

MR. HOLLIS: Thank you, Jill. It's been fun --

o

LOVE: And really trying --

MR. HOLLIS: ~-- it's been a -- it has been a
chal | enge.

MS. LOVE: Yeah.

MR. KINNELL: It's been fun and very
col l aborative, though, and we appreciate that.

MS. LOVE: Right.

MR. KINNELL: Mark, do you want to maybe
address, from an engi neering point of view, your support
or what your concerns, thoughts are, to be hel pful --

MS. KRUPA: One second.

MR. KINNELL: Yeah.

MS. KRUPA: So when you referred to the 50, 000
for the village for additional parking, is that parking

on West?

Veritext Lega Solutions
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MR. HOLLIS: No. Actually, that parking is the
parki ng that you're seeing right now So essentially,
we have a design for the parking on West Street where it
shows four parallel spaces and a sidewal k. That is al
future expense at a future date, because in order for
that to be feasible, the road woul d need to be w dened
to the true right of way, not beyond what you al ready
have, but it would need to be w dened.

So the recomendation is really to do that at

the time that you repave West Street.

MS. KRUPA: Yeah, | think froma Counci
standpoint, we'd have to figure out where is that 50,000
comng from So nore conversation --

MR. HOLLIS: That's a great question, Kathy.

MR. MARSHALL: Do you want to speak to that,
M chel l e? W have several budget line itenms for road
i nprovenents, and this is such a great opportunity for
the village. | nean, we get all this stuff done for
$50, 000. We woul d never be able to do this.

First of all, the developer is going to --
going to do the work, so it's not prevailing wage, so
he's doing that. Qur portion of it is -- is nmuch, much
less than it would be if we tried to do anything |ike
this on our own. So it did kind of shift our

priorities, Kathy, and you know, that happens, right?

Veritext Lega Solutions
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We didn't know M. Hollis was going to cone in
and just be so willing to work with the village.
mean, he's done everything we' ve asked. You know, we've
created new parking dowmmtown. We're really going to
i nprove that stretch of -- of -- of Colunbus Street
there in a | ot of ways.

So we thought we would take funds fromour big

pool of road noney, and Mchelle can speak to that.

M5. KRUPA: How delicate we are about, M chael,
speaking this too, about dollars when it comes to the
road and the sidewal ks and all of that.

MR. SHOCK: Your mc is off.

M5. LOVE: Your mc is off, Kathy.

MS. KRUPA: | just clicked it off and it was
on. Just how delicate we are about using funds fromthe
street and that type of thing because we have a mmj or
need here in the village when it cones to curbs and
si dewal ks and streets, that | struggle with having to
conme up with 50, 000.

MR. MARSHALL: Well, the thing is, is that we
get the sidewal k --

MR. SHOCK: Your mc is off.

MR. MARSHALL: We get a correction of a | ot of
probl enms down there that would cost us nore if it

weren't for this devel opnent, and -- and we just

Veritext Lega Solutions
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woul dn't be able to do it.

We're getting a brand new sidewal k, all the ADA

stuff is solved, the -- you know, we're really -- the --

the -- this noney's being spent on the very thing that
we had budgeted the noney to be spent on as correcting
M5. KRUPA: W1l you offer us 60 nonths, O
percent interest?
MR. MARSHALL: Yeah, yeah.
MR. HOLLI'S: |'m negotiable, Kathy. W can
talk about it. How s that?
MR. KINNELL: Kathy, | think we always al so
sone safety features here because we're going to bunmp
out the stop signs on both ends.

MR. SHOCK: | nproves the one intersection.

MR. KINNELL: So visibility is going to be a

|l ot better down in that corner than we've had. The

chall enge here is, it's -- it's kind of one of those

things, where if Hollis breaks ground, we kind of need

to do this at the sanme tine.
MS. LOVE: So we do it at once.
MR. KINNELL: Yeah. Yeah.
MS. LOVE: (Ilnaudible) two projects at two

different tines.

MR. HOLLIS: And that's a good way to put it

get

Veritext Lega Solutions
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too, you know? And | -- and |I'm not pushing one way or
the other. | do hope you guys know that, |ike, you
know, fromny standpoint, | do think it's a win for the
village, but | -- | recognize the stress on funds.

And if you guys were to say, hey, no, we don't
want to do this, go do what you were going to do, you
know, you're not -- |I'm not pushing one way for the
other as the private sector. | don't want you to think

' m asking for a favor.

If anything, | think collaboratively, it really

is awn for the village, and you guys are being able to
pick up on a ot of funds that were going to spend
anyway to reduce a |ot of that burden there, so..

MR. KINNELL: Any questions? Anything el se?
OCkay. Then, thank you --

MR. SHOCK: Let's get Mark --

MR. KI NNELL: Yeah, you -- Mark, you want to

HOLLI S:  Yeah.

KI NNELL:  Yeah.

RUFENER: G ve ny nane?
SHOCK:  Yes, sir.

3 3 3%

RUFENER: All right, thank you. 1It's Mark
Rufener. |I'mthe village engineer for the Village of

Galena. And | believe all of you have the copy of the

Veritext Lega Solutions
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letter that | provided to the village, just outlining a
few of the things that we worked through with Matt here.
The first one is the right-of-way vacation and
dedi cation. There's approximtely 408 square feet that
woul d -- that Matt would be, between Matt and Col dwat er,
that they would be giving up to the village to take the
pl ace of that new sidewal k. And then the village, in
turn, would be vacating approxi mately 382 square feet.
One of the things that we' ve tal ked about
subsequent to this letter is that the -- the village
shoul d mai ntain easenent rights in there in case there
woul d be a utility need or sonme other need, that you
could be able to access that area while still allow ng
it to be Matt's property so he could nmeet his m nimm
| ot requirenents.

And that is sonething that's going to be --
that will need to be a separate ordi nance that | believe
maybe Ken wi |l put together for both the dedication and
then the vacation on the right of way. W also took a
| ook at the public infrastructure costs. Matt put
toget her a cost estimte.

We reviewed that and found that those costs
that he put together, they were reasonable. W believe
the $50,000 that's estimated for the inprovenents is a

reasonabl e nunber for the village.

WWw.veritext.com

Veritext Lega Solutions

888-391-3376



© o0 N o o b~ w N P

N NN N NN R R R R R R R R R R
O A W N P O © 0O ~N O O b W N B O

Page 19

And then, finally, related to the site access
that he nentioned on Mddle Street, there -- the traffic
engi neer did do a review of that, and we put together a
list of some itens that should be included in the
approval, nost of which Matt, | believe, has al ready
mentioned, including restricting the site access to
right in and right out, installing the nountable curb,
requiring installation of a gate across the access drive
t hat woul d be | ocked.

The one other item noted here that he did not
mention, but that if there would be a vehicle backing
out fromthat entrance, that there should be a fl agger
to make sure that that novenent can happen safely. And
then, the final itemwould be if there's a change in use
of the site, that would require a new traffic access
study to ensure that, you know, the existing access is
still valid for the new use.

Any questions?

MS. LOVE: That's a lot of insight. | said
that was a lot of insight to add that |ast piece.

MR. HOLLIS: Yeah, | forgot those things.
Sorry.

MS. LOVE: It -- no, that's okay. Just --

MR. RUFENER: We tal ked about it.

M5. LOVE: Yeah. All right. No, sounds |like

Veritext Lega Solutions
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you're really covering a ot of this and | ooked at

upsi de down and si deways,

MR. RUFENER
MS. LOVE:

far as that $50, 000,

that we necessarily budgeted for

just curious, you know, is that plausible? Are we able
to do that?
MR. KI NNELL: It -- it's in the budget.
MS. LOVE: It is in the budget already?
MR. KINNELL: It just wasn't allocated that
direction at that point.
MS. KRUPA: Right.
MS. LOVE: | see. Ckay.
MR. KI NNELL: Yeah.
MS. LOVE: So it's in there under --
MR. KINNELL: They're not asking for any
addi ti onal budget doll ars.
MS. LOVE: Great. Ckay.
MR. KINNELL: Under which one?
MS. DEARTH: Well, the funds are -- that we

have funds in the actual

or under the general,
cat egori es.

MS. LOVE:

Qui ck question for the village.

obviously this wasn't sonething

Page 20
it
right?

Yeah.

As
So |

early on. was

street fund that we coul d use,

and there's under the street

Okay.
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MS. DEARTH: There's sone providers and -- and
different types. So it's in the budget, but not
necessarily was put for this project.

MS. LOVE: Ckay. | didn't think so. Thank
you. So as of any good budget and any of our hone
budget, we have to al ways choose between one thing and
another. So what does this make us kind of not be able
to do perhaps this year? Anything in particular?
mean, because again, it wasn't necessarily budgeted for

any one thing.

I mean, that's a nore general category, |
under st and.

MR. MARSHALL: That's a -- that's a great
guestion. W' ve been talking a | ot about that.

MS. LOVE: Unh-huh.

MR. MARSHALL: So when we put the budget
toget her, we do our best to try to forecast cost, and we
really don't know until we get quotes. So we need
-- we need to get quotes on this stuff. And |I do have
meetings with contractors coming up to try to do that.
So I also want to add that our nunbers cone up to be, |
t hi nk, $37, 000.

So we -- we added the -- there's sone
contingency building there as well --

MS. LOVE: Sur e.

Veritext Lega Solutions
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MR. MARSHALL: -- into that 50,000. And so, we
just -- we have a big pile of noney for -- for a |ot of
projects. So --

MS. LOVE: Uh- huh.
MR. MARSHALL: ~-- you know, this one ends up

bei ng one f

So --

2

exactly.

Honmestream (phonetic) project is budgeted. W have

budget noney for that.

put in for

the entire village. And one thing that we really have
to get done this year is the failed asphalt at the

stoppi ng areas, |ike out here on --

Wal nut .

Page 22

or this year because Matt's doing the work.

LOVE: Right.
MARSHALL: =-- | -- 1 -- 1 can't really say

MS. LOVE: Ckay.
MR. MARSHALL: You know, there's -- we have the

M5. LOVE: Yep
MR. MARSHALL: We have all the noney that we

street repairs and correction is for the --

MS. LOVE: Yes.
MR. MARSHALL: -- at Col unbus and -- and -- and

&

LOVE: Curb is pushing it forward.

3

MARSHALL: So we have to address those
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I ssues.

MS. LOVE: Yeabh.

MR. MARSHALL: And so -- and then, we have sone
par ki ng pavenent stuff that we have to address as wel|.
But we tal ked about it, we've been |ooking at it, and we
think we can still get everything done with what we have
budgeted. So I'm not --

MS. LOVE: And we're going to get that $3
mllion grant, right?

MR. MARSHALL: Well, that'd be great, wouldn't
it? So that's another thing, is that if we get that,
we' re hone free.

MS5. LOVE: That's right. That's right. | was
just kind of curious because | know there's always a
gi ve and t ake.

MR. MARSHALL: Yeah. I|I'msorry | can't be nore
exact on that.

M5. LOVE: No, no. That -- | -- | understand
why you can't. So that's --

MR. KINNELL: Al right. Anything else for
Matt, for Mark? Any other questions?

MR. HOLLIS: If you --

MR. KINNELL: Matt, do you have anything el se?

MR. HOLLIS: Yeah, | do have a coupl e ot her

things I -- | just want to say real briefly. So again,
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one nore thing -- I"'meither way, right? Like, | think
it's good for the village. | want to do the best that |
can to help the village with the funds. | recognize

it's a lot of noney.

The ot her thing, though, that Tom and your team
was successful in doing was getting me to conmt to a
not to exceed, despite the fact | have no construction
drawi ngs and no quotes, right? And so, like, the risk
is really not on the village in the project.

The risk is really on nme for any cost overruns,
et cetera. So just sonething else to keep in mnd, even
though I -- it is a big ask, recognize that, you know,
there's very little risk to that ask for you guys,
versus if you guys were to go do these things on your
own with your own, you know, budget funds, it's a little
different.

The only other thing, | brought it up the | ast
time, and I1'd like to say it again. So originally, when
| purchased the property, you know, | sat on it for a
little while, just kind of playing with different ideas,
and | approached the village | ast Novenber. And we're
now sitting here at end of April, and |I'm worKking
really, really hard to try to get it as nmuch of a w n-
win for everyone as | can.

But with the three readings and then the 30
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days, | can't even get to Del aware County to get a
permt until | have the zoning certificate, which cones
at the end of that process. Delaware County is running
somewhere around 30 to 45 days for approval

So as of today, even if it were -- if you guys
were to vote and it were to pass and go through all the
readi ngs, et cetera, |I'mlooking at Septenber 15th to
break ground. And so, that's pretty difficult froma
devel opment perspective when so nuch of the project is

earth noving, concrete and asphalt.

And so, if there's any way that you woul d
consi der suspending the rules on it, I'mnot asking for
an energency because our civil engineers architect are
going to need sone time to devel op plans anyways, but if
there was a potential that you would | ook at suspendi ng
the rules, it could pick nme up about 60 days of prine
sumer, you know, construction tine.

So just wanted to put that out there.

MR. KINNELL: Thank you, Matt.

MR. MARSHALL: | -- I'mgoing to add sonething
to -- to -- to Councilmn Love's question. | -- |
failed to nmention that we -- this year, we were going to

do the striping part of this project anyhow. The -- the
stop signs -- you can't even see the stop signs on these

corners and they need to be noved out.

Veritext Lega Solutions
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And B&N' s done sonme work for us and -- and --
and figuring that out. And so, the -- the -- the
drawi ng that you see that you have in front of you is --
includes a lot of stuff that we thought we had to do
this year anyhow, |ike striping the bunp outs. W have
the ADA ranps. Those are in disrepair in that area.

This gets themfixed. W have the relocating
of the signs, that's inportant, and the striping and the
ADA ranps, and sone asphalt repairs. So really, out of

that 37,000, a lot of that was going to be spent
already. So Il -- 1 -- 1 failed to nention that before.
MR. KINNELL: Thank you, Tom All right.

That's it for this hearing, and if there's no other

guestions, I'Il take a notion to close this hearing.
MR. HOLLI'S: Thank you, guys.
MR. KINNELL: Thank you, Matt.
MR. HOPPER: 1'Ill rmake the notion.
MR. KINNELL: Zach. Do | have a second?
MR. CASUCCIO. [I'll second it.
MR. KINNELL: Pete. Mchelle, when you're

ready.

DEARTH: Okay. M ke?
FRY: Yes.

DEARTH: Pete?

25 3 0

CASUCCI O Yes.
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DEARTH: Gl lian?

DOUCETTE: Yes.

DEARTH:  Zach?

HOPPER:  Yes.

DEARTH: Jill?

LOVE: Yes.

DEARTH: Kat hy?

KRUPA:  Yes.

KI NNELL: And this hearing closes 7:19 p.m
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CERTI FI CATE

I, ELLINA DELILLO, Reporter and Notary Public for
the State of Ohio, do hereby certify that | was
authorized to and did report the foregoing proceeding,
and that said transcript is a true record of the said

proceedi ng.

| FURTHER CERTI FY that | am not of counsel for,
related to, or enployed by any of the parties or
attorneys involved herein, nor aml financially

interested in said action.
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